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Old Town Hall, Home of the School the First Six Years.

The First State Normal School Building in America.
Erected in Bridgewater, Mass., in 1846.
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Historical Sketch.

This school is one of the first three State normal schools on this

continent.

Hon. Edmund Dwight of Boston offered to furnish ten thousand dol-

lars, " to be expended under the direction of the Board of Education for

qualifying teachers for our common schools,11 on condition that the Leg-

islature would appropriate for the same purpose an equal amount. On
the 19th of April, 1838, the Legislature passed a resolve accepting this

otfer. The Board decided to establish three schools for the education of

teachers, each to be continued three years, as an experiment, and on

May 30, 1838, voted to establish one of these schools in the county of

Plymouth. On Dec. 28, 1838, the Board voted to establish the other two

at Lexington and Barre. Prominent men in Plymouth County spent

nearly two years in the endeavor to raise ten thousand dollars for the

erection of new buildings for this school. The towns of Abington,

Wareham, Plymouth, Duxbury and Marshfield voted to make appropria-

tions for the school from the surplus revenue which had just before been

divided by the general government. After vigorous competition it was

decided to locate the school at Bridgewater, whereupon some of the

towns refused to redeem their pledges, and the funds were not realized.

Bridgewater granted to the school the free use of its town hall for three

years, and the next three years the school paid a rental of fifty dollars a

year. Here, by the skill and genius of its first principal, Nicholas Til-

linghast, the experiment of a. State normal school in the Old Colony was

successfully performed. The school was opened Sept. 9, 1840, with

a class of twenty-eight pupils,— seven men and twenty-one women.
In 1846 the State, with the liberal co-operation of the town of Bridge-

water and its citizens, provided a permanent home for the school in the

first State normal school building erected in America.

The school has had only three principals. Nicholas Tillinghast was
principal the first thirteen years, and he devoted himself unsparingly to

the work of establishing it upon a broad and deep foundation. By his

persistent, thorough, self-forgetting and noble work he exerted an influ-
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ence that will not cease to be felt among the generations of this Com-
monwealth. When he entered upon his work these schools for teachers

simply " had leave to be."
1 The difficulties which had to be surmounted

would have appalled a man of less heroic temperament.

Marshall Conant, the second principal, brought to the school a rich

harvest of ripe fruit gathered in other fields, and immediately took up

the work where his predecessor had left it, and carried it forward in the

same spirit during the next seven years.

Albert G. Boyden has been principal since August, 1860.

The growth of the school is shown by the enlargements made for its

accommodation, as follows :
—

In 1861 the school building was enlarged, increasing its capacity

seventy per cent.

In 1869 Normal Hall, the first residence hall, was built, accommodat-

ing fifty-two students and the family of the principal.

In 1871 the school building was again enlarged, increasing its capacity

fifty per cent.

In 1873 Normal Hall was enlarged so as to accommodate one hundred

and forty-eight students.

In 1881 a new building was erected for physical and chemical labora-

tories, and connected with the rear of the school building.

In 1883 a farm of four and one-half acres was purchased, and prepared

to receive the sewage of the institution.

In 1886 "Boyden Park 11 was purchased for out-door recreations.

In 1887 Normal Grove was presented to the school by two of its

alumni, Dr. Lewis G. Lowe and Samuel P. Gates.

In 1890 the school building erected in 1846, with its enlargements, was
removed and a new brick structure was erected at a cost of one hundred
and fifty thousand dollars. The same year the laboratory building

erected in 1881 was converted into Woodward Hall, which accommo-
dates thirty-two students.

In 1894 the school building was enlarged, increasing its capacity fifty

per cent., at a cost of seventy-five thousand dollars.

In 1895 Tillinghast Hall, a fine brick building which accommodates
seventy-two students, was erected ; also a new steam laundry.

In 1904 a new gymnasium was built.

In 1846 the course of study extended through three successive terms
of fourteen weeks each ; in 1855 the course was made three successive

terms of twenty weeks each
; in 1865 it was made four successive terms

of twenty weeks. From the beginning students who desired could

extend their course through additional terms, taking elective studies.

In 1869 the four years 1 course was introduced, and an intermediate
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course, including the studies of the two years' course and electives from

the advanced part of the four years 1 course, was also provided.

The average attendance per term for the first ten years of the school

was fifty-three ; for the sixth decade it was two hundred and forty-five
;

and for the last three years, two hundred and sixty-eight.

A model school, or school of practice, was started at the opening of

the normal school, and was conducted under the direct supervision

of the principal of the normal school for eleven years, when it was dis-

continued. From that time onward the normal school has been a school

of practice in its classes.

In 1880, by arrangement made with the town, the centre district public

school near by was made a school of observation for the students of the

normal school.

In 1891 the centre district school of the town, including eight grades,

was taken into the new normal school building, and became the model

school for observation and practice by the normal students.

In 1893 a public kindergarten was opened as a part of the model

school, to be used in training kindergartners.

In 1894 a ninth grade was established in the model school, which took

in all the pupils of this grade in the town.

LOCATION.

Bridgewater, one of the pleasantest and most healthful towns in Mas-

sachusetts, with a population of about six thousand, is on the Old Colony

division of the New York, New Haven & Hartford Railroad, twenty-

seven miles south of Boston.
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BUILDINGS AND GROUNDS.

The school building is a massive structure, built in three blocks with

narrower connections, thus giving good light and air in all the rooms,

and is constructed of red and mottled brick with blue marble trim-

mings, and has a slate roof. It is eighty-seven feet wide in front, three

hundred and fourteen feet in length, and three stories and the basement

in height.

In the basement are two lunch rooms, two play rooms, with toilet

rooms for primary grades, two engine and fan rooms, engineer's room,

gymnasium, two class rooms, and the industrial laboratory.

On the first floor are a reception room, coat, cloak and toilet rooms,

teachers 1 rooms, the library, class room for history, class rooms and toilet

rooms for kindergarten, first, second and ninth grades, and for the

supervisor of practice teaching. Front, rear and side entrances, ample

corridors and stairways give easy entrance to all parts of the building

and rapid exit therefrom.

On the second floor are the principal's office and teachers 1 rooms, the

assembly hall,— a large pleasant hall, furnished with reference books

and adorned with pictures and memorial tablet, busts of eminent men
and portraits of teachers, most of them the gifts of graduates of the school,

— a class room for languages, four laboratories for natural science, in-

cluding extensive collections, and teachers 1 rooms adjoining, the princi-

pal's class room, class room for English, class rooms and toilet rooms

for third and fourth grades.

On the third floor are two class rooms for mathematics, class room for

vocal culture, three class rooms for drawing, two physical laboratories

and teacher's room, two chemical laboratories and teacher 1

s room, class

rooms and toilet rooms for filth, sixth, seventh and eighth grades. The
attic gives ample storage room.

One-third of the building is devoted to the model school, and gives

accommodation for four hundred and seventy-five pupils.

In its interior arrangement the building is admirably adapted to its

purpose. It is one of the best equipped normal school buildings in the

country. It is well supplied with water, heated and ventilated by the

"fan system, 11 has a heat-regulating apparatus, an electric time service

and an electric light service.

Near by, in the same quadrangle, are the three residence halls, —
Normal Hall, Woodward Hall and Tillinghast Hall. The buildings are

ten minutes 1 walk from the railway station, have a good location near

the centre of the village, upon a square three acres in extent, and the

view from them is attractive.
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The new gymnasium is a fine brick structure, trimmed with dark-blue

marble, and has a slated roof tipped with copper. The main part of the

building is forty-eight by ninety feet ; the projection on the front is

twenty-four by sixty-four feet, with octagonal towers on the front corners

for stairways. The basement story is in two apartments, one for men,

the other for women ; each has a coat room, lockers, dressing rooms

and baths. The first floor has the vestibule, corridors, directors' room,

ladies 1 retiring room and the gymnasium. The second floor has two

meeting rooms on the front, and the gallery with the running track. It

is a first-class modern gymnasium, and serves the school not only for

physical training, but for social gatherings, as an audience room, and as

a banquet hall for alumni gatherings. It is an important factor in the

life of the school.

Boyden Park includes six acres of land just across the street from the

school lot. It has a beautiful pond, fine shade trees and pleasant walks

dividing it into open areas for tennis courts and other out-door sports,

making an attractive place for healthful recreation. Normal Grove,

adjoining the park, including one-half acre, is a fine grove of chestnut

trees, affording a delightful summer retreat. South Field, just across

the street on the south side, includes two acres of level ground for

athletic sports.

Admission.

Candidates for admission must declare their intention to teach in the

public schools of Massachusetts, to complete the course of study in the

school if possible, and they must pledge themselves to keep the require-

ments of the school faithfully. They must, if young men, have attained

the age of seventeen years ; if young women, the age of sixteen years.

Their fitness for admission will be determined as follows :
—

PHYSICAL EXAMINATION.

The State Board of Education passed the following vote March 7,

1901 :
—

That the visitors of the several normal schools be authorized and directed to

provide for a physical examination of candidates for admission to the normal

schools, in order to determine whether they are free from any disease or infirm-

ity which would unfit them for the office of teacher ; and also to examine any

student at any time in the course, to determine whether his physical condition

is such as to warrant his continuance in the school.






